

THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION

RFQ NO. 205-2016

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION FOR A CITY OF WINNIPEG PROJECT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT SOLUTION (PPMS)

Template Version: RFQ020150806 - Main RFQ

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART A - REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION APPLICATION

Form A: Request for Qualification Application	1
PART B - REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION INFORMATIO	N
B1. Definitions	1
B2. Executive Summary	4
B3. Background	5
B4. Winnipeg	7
B5. Purpose of the Request for Qualifications Docume	nt 8
B6. Scope of Work	8
B7. General Conditions	9
B8. Project Schedule	9
B9. Procurement Process	10
B10. Disclosure	10
B11. Enquiries	10
B12. Contract Administrator	11
B13. Addenda	11
B14. Conflict of Interest and Good Faith	11
B15. Confidentiality And Privacy	12
B16. Non-Disclosure	12
B17. No Collusion	12
B18. No Lobbying	13
B19. Eligibility	13
Submission Instructions	
B20. Submission Deadline	13
B21. Qualification Submission	13
B22. Form A: Request for Qualification Application	14
B23. Form N: Proponent Proposal–Requirements	15
B24. Public Sector Knowledge & Experience of Propone	
B25. Product Development Profile of Proponent	16
B26. PPMS Implementation Approach of Proponent	16
B27. Value-Added or Innovative Services of Proponent	16
B28. Substitutions	17
B29. Non-Conforming Submissions	17
B30. Proponent's Costs and Expenses	17
Evaluation	
B31. Evaluation Criteria	17
B32. No Contract	18

PART B - REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION INFORMATION

B1. DEFINITIONS

- B1.1 When used in this Request for Qualification:
 - (a) "Accessibility" means the ability to access and benefit from the PPMS software/system. This would include enabling access for people with disabilities, or special needs;
 - (b) "ADKAR" means a goal-oriented change management model (owned by Prosci) that allows organizational change management teams to focus their activities on specific business results. The five parts of ADKAR—Awareness, Desire, Knowledge, Ability and Reinforcement—show the milestones an organization or individual must achieve for change to be successful;
 - (c) "Asset Management" means aligning service delivery with customer value to asset performance. Asset Management is a non IT system composed of an integrated set of business processes and governance that align to minimize the lifecycle cost of owning operating and maintaining assets at an acceptable level of risk while continuously delivering established levels of service;
 - (d) "Asset Management Office (AMO)" means the centre of excellence for Asset Management within a City department or agency, which focuses on investment planning and project delivery processes, the AMO will drive organizational success through the efficient and effective creation of robust investment plans and oversight of programs and projects by managing key performance metrics and benefit realization results;
 - (e) "Bid Opportunity" means the Bid Submission, the Bidding Procedures, the General Conditions, the Supplemental Condition, the Specifications and all Addenda;
 - (f) "Business Benefits" means measurable improvements that contribute towards meeting one or more business objectives;
 - (g) "Business Capabilities" means changes or changed states that are required before future business benefits are realised;
 - (h) "Business Day" means any Calendar Day, other than a Saturday, Sunday, or a Statutory or Civic Holiday;
 - (i) "Calendar Day" means the period from one midnight to the following midnight;
 - (j) "Change Readiness Assessment" means analysis of the level of preparedness for the proposed change at all levels in an organization. The greater the complexity of the proposed change, the greater the importance of understanding whether and where there is readiness for change, as this can support development of effective organizational change management plans;
 - (k) "City" means the City of Winnipeg as continued under The City of Winnipeg Charter, Statutes of Manitoba 2002, c. 39, and any subsequent amendments thereto;
 - (I) "City Council" means the Council of the City of Winnipeg;
 - (m) "Contract" means the combined documents consisting of the Request for Qualification package, Request for Proposal package and any documents and drawings referred to and incorporated therein together with any submissions required to be made by the Contractor after award, and all amendments to the foregoing;
 - (n) "Contract Administrator" means the person authorized to represent the City in respect
 of the Request for Qualifications unless otherwise specified hereinafter;
 - (o) "Contractor" means the person undertaking the performance of the work under the terms of the Contract;
 - (p) "Dashboards" means from a management information system perspective, that there is an easy-to-read, real-time user interface, showing a graphical presentation of the current

- status (snapshot) and historical trends of either portfolio, program or project-level key performance indicators to enable instantaneous and informed decisions to be made;
- (q) "Discovery Phase" means a project phase that is incorporated in some project management methodologies. The discovery phase may take as part of project initiation or planning activities. The purpose is to discover information that might be important to the project. High-level designs, prototypes and models may also be developed;
- (r) "Document Management" means the process of handling documents in such a way that information can be created, shared, organized and stored efficiently and appropriately;
- (s) "Enterprise Content Management" means a formalized means of organizing and storing an organization's documents, and other content, that relate to the organization's processes. The term encompasses strategies, methods, and tools used throughout the lifecycle of the content;
- (t) "Enterprise Software" means a collection of computer programs with common business applications or software tools for modeling how the entire organization works. The software is intended to solve an enterprise-wide problem, rather than a departmental problem;
- (u) "Functional Requirements" means a function of a system and its components. Functional requirements may therefore include calculations, technical details, data manipulation and processing and other specific functionality that define *what* a system is supposed to accomplish;
- (v) "Integration" means the process of linking together different computing systems and software applications physically or functionally, to act as a coordinated whole;
- (w) "Investment Planning" means a process that aligns investments dollars to defined customer service targets with a robust, transparent and defendable approach. The investment planning process identifies and rationalizes infrastructure investments by defining investments needs in terms of service delivery gaps, asset performance risk, long-term service delivery strategic and regulatory requirement. Lowest whole life costing solutions are determined for each investment. Individual investments across the City are then prioritized to defined benefits criteria with the residual risk to service delivery identified for any delayed investment;
- (x) "Level of Service" means the defined level of a given service against which asset performance e.g. a bridge, can be measured. The service level is usually related to quality, quantity, reliability, responsiveness, environmental acceptability or cost criteria;
- (y) "may" indicates an allowable action or feature which will not be evaluated;
- (z) "must" or "shall" or "will" indicates a mandatory requirement which will be evaluated on a pass/fail basis;
- (aa) "Non-Functional Requirements" means requirements that specify criteria that can be used to judge the operation of a system, rather than specific system behaviours. Nonfunctional requirements are also often called the "quality attributes" of a system;
- (bb) "Notification" means a message that is delivered to group of recipients via use of a IT notification system that may involve a combination of software and hardware components;
- (cc) "Organizational Change Management (OCM)" means a process framework structured around the changing needs and capabilities of an organization. OCM is used to prepare, adopt and implement fundamental and radical organizational changes, including its culture, policies, procedures and physical environment, as well as employee roles, skills and responsibilities;
- (dd) "Person" means an individual, firm, partnership, association or corporation, or any combination thereof, and includes heirs, administrators, executors or legal representatives of a person;

- (ee) "PMBOK" means the Project Management Body of Knowledge which is a global standard for project management that has been developed and is maintained currently by the Project Management Institute (PMI);
- (ff) "Portfolio Management" means managing a portfolio of investments for a service area or multiple service areas to ensure that work outcomes and benefits reflected in project or program business cases are tracked and managed through-out the investment planning and project delivery processes;
- (gg) "PPM" means Project Portfolio Management, which is the centralized management of the processes, methods, and technologies used by City project managers, Contract Administrators, Asset Management Offices (AMOs) and Project Management Office (PMO) to manage and report-on current or proposed projects based on key characteristics. The objectives of PPM are to determine the optimal portfolio mix for delivery and to schedule project activities to best achieve the City's operational and financial goals;
- (hh) "PPMS" means a Project Portfolio Management Solution, which is an enterprise software tool that supports the key processes of Project Portfolio Management (PPM);
- (ii) "PPMS Project" means project activities performed by the Proponent associated with implementation of the PPMS software tool including but not limited to: project initiation, business requirements and process analysis, system design, system development & testing, software licensing and configuration, system integration and deployment, software release management and user or system support role training;
- (jj) "Project" means the PPMS Project, as defined;
- (kk) "project" means a temporary endeavour undertaken to create a unique product, service or result;
- (II) "Project Data" means the data elements associated with a specific project, which is viewed as a temporary endeavor undertaken to create a unique product service or result;
- (mm) "Project Management Office (PMO)" means a City office which provides a number of services to enable the best fit between Information Technology project needs and available resources. The PMO also provides support to the Director of Corporate Support Services (CSS) in the area of information technology oversight and the compliance with Information Services Administrative Standards:
- (nn) "Project Phasing" means when a complete project life-cycle is broken into suitable discrete phases by the project manager to support improved project control;
- (oo) "Proponent" means any Person or consortium submitting a Qualification Submission in response to this Request for Qualification;
- (pp) "Public Private Partnership (PPP)" means a government service that is funded and operated through a partnership of government and one or more private sector companies. PPP involves a contract between a public sector authority and a private party, in which the private party provides a public service or project and assumes substantial financial, technical and operational risk in the project;
- (qq) "Quality Management" means a process to ensure that a product or service is both consistent and fit for purpose. It has four main components: quality planning, quality assurance, quality control and quality improvement. Quality management is therefore focused not only on product and service quality, but also on the means to achieve it;
- (rr) "Records Management" means the professional practice of managing the records of an organization throughout their life cycle, from the time they are created to their eventual disposal. This process includes identifying, classifying, storing, securing, retrieving, tracking and destroying or permanently preserving records;
- (ss) "Resistance Management" means a process to manage employee resistance to change. Resistance to change is the act of opposing or struggling with modifications or transformations that alter the status quo in the workplace. Resistance to change can be covert or overt, organized or individual;

- (tt) "Risk Management" means a City division that is part of the Corporate Finance department. Risk Management provides an internal service to City departments that protects the City's assets, its ability to provide services and meet its objectives by reducing its exposure to losses;
- (uu) "Scenario Modelling" means a strategic planning method that used by the City to support the annual Investment Planning process, via evaluation of different delivery scenarios for future projects or programs that would meet strategic objectives;
- (vv) "should" indicates a desirable action or feature which will be evaluated on a relative scale;
- (ww) "Site" means the lands and other places on, under, in or through which the work is to be performed;
- (xx) "Software Product Roadmap" means a software development plan that aligns shortterm and long-term goals with specific technology or software product solutions to help meet those goals;
- (yy) "Submission or Qualification Submission" means that portion of the Request for Qualification which must be completed or provided and submitted by the Submission Deadline:
- (zz) "Submission Deadline" means the time and date for final receipt of Submissions;
- (aaa) "System Permissions & Security" means methods to assign permissions or access rights to specific users and groups of users. These methods control the ability of the users to view or make changes to the contents of the system;
- (bbb) "Usability" means the degree to which software can be used by specified consumers to achieve quantified objectives with effectiveness, efficiency, and satisfaction in a quantified context of use;
- (ccc) "User Adoption" means general acceptance and regular use of an IT system or software by users because the system/software either fulfills specific user needs or provides a good solution to given problems;
- (ddd) "Work" or "Works" means the carrying out and the doing of all things, whether of a temporary or permanent nature, that are to be done pursuant to the Contract and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, includes the furnishing of all Plant, Material, labour and services necessary for or incidental to the fulfilment of the requirements of the Contract, including all Changes in Work which may be ordered as herein provided:
- (eee) "Workflow" means an orchestrated and repeatable pattern of business activity enabled by the systematic organization of resources into processes that transform materials, provide services, or process information.

B2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- B2.1 The PPMS Project is regarded as an important element of the City's overall Asset Management strategy, particularly in regards to improvements to the current portfolio management control, project delivery and asset information status of capital projects.
- B2.2 The City manages a current portfolio of approximately 150 active capital projects or programs which vary in scale and are supported by an annual capital budget of around \$500m.
- B2.3 The range of City internal departments and agencies that both commission and deliver these capital projects is broad and includes, but is not limited to:
 - (a) Corporate Finance;
 - (b) Corporate Support Services includes Human Resources and IT;
 - (c) Property Planning and Development;
 - (d) Public Works;
 - (e) Transit Services;

- (f) Winnipeg Parking Authority;
- (g) Winnipeg Fire and Paramedic Service;
- (h) Winnipeg Police Service;
- (i) Community Services;
- (j) Fleet Management Agency, and
- (k) Water and Waste.
- B2.4 Many of the City's capital projects involve external consultant/contractor partners, as well as City staff, in the project delivery teams. So it is assumed that external consultant/contractor access would need to be supported by any future PPMS software tool.
- B2.5 A variety of capital project funding mechanisms are also utilised by the City, including City taxsupported, utility funded, Manitoba provincial government, Canadian federal government and Public Private Partnership (PPP) funding schemes.
- B2.6 The PPMS RFQ competition will identify a short-list of Proponents, who have obtained evaluation scores of 70% or higher, based on defined PPMS RFQ evaluation criteria (see section B31).
- B2.7 Only the short-listed Proponents from this PPMS RFQ competition will then be asked to
 - (a) Provide a demonstration of their proposed PPMS software tool to the City's RFQ evaluation team, and
 - (b) Offer proposed pricing information for the PPMS Project based on the details requested in a pricing response form supplied in the future by the City.
- B2.8 It is anticipated that a PPMS Request for Procurement (RFP) competition, which will be used to identify a sole Proponent for PPMS Contract Award from the PPMS RFQ Proponent short-list, should occur in the future.
- B2.9 City of Winnipeg Public Service however, has not received Council approval yet to proceed with procurement of the PPMS Project.
- B2.10 A proposed budget for PPMS Project activities from 2017 onwards is included in the PPMS Project business case that is currently under internal review, as part of the City's annual Investment Planning cycle.

B3. BACKGROUND

- B3.1 The 2009 Capital Project audit identified the need for a formal project management approach in the City of Winnipeg.
- B3.2 The City subsequently developed a Project Delivery Framework (see Attachment 10) and Project Management Manual (PMM) (see Attachment 9) that provide both a delivery framework and methodology for project management in the City.
- B3.3 During development of the PMM, from 2013 to 2015, internal City stakeholders identified a gap in their ability to manage projects (level of service) and the risk of not addressing that service gap.
- B3.4 Phase 1 of the PPMS Project was initiated and completed during the summer of 2014. This phase helped to identify an initial set of requirements and a high-level review of potential software vendor offerings. An initial Business Case for the next phase (Phase 2) of the Project was also approved.
- B3.5 Phase 2 of the PPMS Project commenced in September 2015, with a delivery scope that included:

- (a) developing Approved Requirements and Systems Specification documentation for the PPMS based on extensive internal and external stakeholder interviews by January 2016.
- (b) developing effective PPMS RFQ solution opportunity documentation by March 2016, and
- (c) conducting a procurement evaluation exercise for external Proponents who respond to the PPMS RFQ request by May 2016.
- B3.6 It is anticipated that future phases of the PPMS Project will focus on completion of a PPMS RFP competition and subsequent activities associated with enterprise-wide implementation of the selected PPMS software tool.
- B3.7 The City has placed recent emphasis on wide-spread adoption of effective Organizational Change Management (OCM) techniques to support delivery of its capital project portfolio, including use of the ADKAR method. A significant internal OCM practice group has also been established to support City project manager and contract administrator roles.
- B3.8 During the recent Phase 2 of the PPMS Project, a PPMS-related Change Readiness Assessment survey of internal departments and agencies was undertaken. This survey indicated that the general level of current readiness for implementation of the proposed PPMS software tool was only in its infancy state of maturity. The internal Change Readiness Assessment survey also indicated that there are currently high-risks to the future likelihood of PPMS implementation success.
- B3.9 Other key findings from the recent PPMS Phase 2 analysis include:
 - (a) The current organizational change readiness for the PPMS software tool within the City would suggest a phased-in implementation approach, such that:
 - (i) Any PPMS software tool should be deployed first in departments or agencies where the Investment Planning and Project Delivery Frameworks are being embedded across core units, and
 - (ii) Less-ready City departments or agencies should work on aligning the core principles of project Management (as per the City's PMM) to get ready for future PPMS implementation.
 - (b) Project management and contract administration processes are inconsistent across City departments and agencies;
 - (c) There are a limited number of project delivery champions across the City as Asset Management Office (AMO) and Project Management Office (PMO) roles and structures are still being developed;
 - (d) A wide variety of document formats and repositories are used for City project and contract monitoring and control e.g. inconsistent formats;
 - (e) There are significant gaps in the knowledge/document transfer process between the City's Investment Planning and Project Delivery process cycles, and
 - (f) Benefits monitoring and realisation for the City's capital project portfolio appears to be difficult to track.
- B3.10 It is assumed that any proposed PPMS software tool should integrate effectively with the current enterprise financial system, which is PeopleSoft version 9.1. Several PeopleSoft modules are operated currently by the City, including a Tangible Capital Assets module. An internal project to perform a PeopleSoft upgrade to version 9.2 is in-progress currently and should be complete in 2017.
- B3.11 It is also anticipated that any PPMS software tool would need to integrate with a proposed Enterprise Content Management (ECM) software tool. The initial Discovery Phase of the ECM project was completed in early 2016 and its final recommendations are subject to internal review at the current time.
- B3.12 The general IT system environment that the City operates currently includes:

- (a) Server Hardware/Operating System: The City uses HP/Intel Windows 2012 Server platforms, and employs CA Nimsoft to monitor and manage the server environment;
- (b) Storage: The City has a SAN environment and Brocade switches to support data storage requirements for the production and development database tiers. IBM's TSM Backup/Archive, Veeam and Microsoft DPM products are used for backup and recovery services;
- (c) Database: The City uses Oracle 11g Standard Edition and Microsoft SQL Server 2012 Standard Edition. The City plans to migrate to Oracle 12c during 2016. For larger scale applications Oracle is the preferred platform. The City has implemented a functional database environment that fulfills all application system functional requirements, provides full online back-up, recovery and reorganization facilities including database transaction logging and up-to-the-minute forward recovery, plus timely automated reporting of actual or potential errors or problems. The City conducts database performance measurement and tuning as necessary;
- (d) Network: The City of Winnipeg Backbone Network Infrastructure allows TCP/IP data communications between all City departments. This allows about 5,000 devices connected through the Backbone Network to be able to communicate with each other, the Internet and with central servers at two corporate data centres;
- (e) City's Backbone Network operates at speeds ranging from 100/1000 BaseT fiber optic connectivity for large LANs, 10 Mbps for medium sized LANs and 2 Mbps connections for small LANs. Cisco routers and switches are used in the WAN and LAN as well as for VPN remote access. Checkpoint Nokia firewall products provide network security.

B4. WINNIPEG

- B4.1 Winnipeg is an important Canadian city, and the capital of the Province of Manitoba. Located in Western Canada, Winnipeg plays a prominent role in transportation, finance, manufacturing, agriculture and education. It is known as the Gateway to the West. The City is located near the geographic centre of North America. It lies in a flood plain at the confluence of the Red and Assiniboine rivers and started around the point now commonly known as The Forks. It is protected from flooding by the Red River Floodway. Winnipeg covers an area of 663 square kilometers.
- B4.2 The City of Winnipeg is the Capital city of the Province of Manitoba with a population of over 650,000. Composed of a broad range of diverse neighbourhoods and communities with numerous attractions (from arts and culture to sports and entertainment), Winnipeg is recognized as one of Canada's finest places to live, work and play. The City employs over 8,000 people and provides a full range of municipal services to the citizens of Winnipeg.
- B4.3 The political representation for the City is a Mayor and 15 Councillors, each representing a city ward. The current Mayor and Council were elected in October 2014. Their term of office ends in 2018.
- B4.4 The administrative structure for the City is a Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) providing overall supervision for the following departments: Corporate Finance, Assessment and Taxation, Internal Services, Community Services, Fire Paramedic Service, Winnipeg Police Service, Public Works, Transit, Water and Waste, and Planning, Property and Development.
- B4.5 The City provides many services to its citizens. By service, the representation is distributed as follows: Public Safety (25%), Transportation (23%), Environmental (23%), Planning and Development (4%), Leisure and Wellness (15%), Internal Support (10%). For additional information on City services, refer to the City of Winnipeg web site at: City of Winnipeg

B5. PURPOSE OF THE REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS DOCUMENT

- B5.1 The City is requesting information from interested and qualified parties who have experience in the development and implementation of an enterprise software Project Portfolio Management Solution (PPMS).
- B5.2 The purpose of the RFQ is to identify qualified parties and their level of expertise.
- B5.3 The ability of the Proponent's proposed PPMS software tool to meet the City's currently defined Functional and Non-Functional requirements, as outlined in Form N will be assessed.
- B5.4 An assessment will be made of the Proponent's experience in the Public Sector environment with implementation of their proposed PPMS tool, including an evaluation of the Proponent's proposed PPMS Project team for the City.
- B5.5 The Proponent's current Software Product Roadmap and customer base will be evaluated to determine the Proponent's future product development profile.
- B5.6 An evaluation of the Proponent's proposed approach to ensuring successful implementation of the PPMS software tool across City departments and agencies, including user training & support and other Organizational Change Management aspects, will be made.
- B5.7 Proponents will also be asked to identify any additional value-added or innovative services that they may offer the City in conjunction with the proposed PPMS software tool.
- B5.8 The City invites qualified individuals to submit a Qualification Submission in response to this RFQ, according to B21.
- B5.9 After receiving the Submissions to this RFQ, the City will review all Submissions received and then perform evaluation of the Submissions based on the PPMS Evaluation Criteria outlined in B31. A short-list of the most qualified Proponents based on PPMS RFQ evaluation team scores of 70% or higher, will be developed. Only those Proponents placed on this short-list will then be invited to submit further information, including:
 - (a) a demonstration of their proposed PPMS software tool and implementation plan/s to the RFQ evaluation team in Winnipeg, and
 - (b) a more detailed pricing proposal to support their proposed PPMS Implementation Approach, according to B26.
- B5.10 The short-listed Proponents from the RFQ competition may also be invited to a future RFP competition leading to award of the Contract, subject to both City Council approval of the proposed PPMS Project budget and PPMS RFQ evaluation team review of the additional information outlined in B5.9(a) and B5.9(b).

B6. SCOPE OF WORK

- B6.1 The Work to be done under the proposed Contract shall consist of the provision of the Project Portfolio Management Solution (PPMS) software for the period from the date of the award until successful completion of the Work as accepted by the Contract Administrator.
- B6.1.1 The City may negotiate the extension option with the Contractor within sixty (60) Calendar Days prior to the expiry date of the Contract. The City shall incur no liability to the Contractor as a result of such negotiations.
- B6.1.2 Changes resulting from such negotiations shall become effective on the anniversary of the start date of the respective year. Changes to the Contract shall not be implemented by the Contractor without written approval by the Contract Administrator.
- B6.2 The major components of the Work are as follows:
 - (a) Provide the City with PPMS software as specified in Form N;

- (b) Provide assistance in system installation and configuration;
- (c) Provide system testing and user acceptance testing;
- (d) Provide training for both internal IT system support staff and users;
- (e) Support Organizational Change Management (OCM) activities for the PPMS Project, which would be led by the City;
- (f) Provide ongoing support and two (2) years maintenance with the option of five (5) mutually agreed upon two (2) year extensions;
- (g) Provide data storage hosted within Canada, if a cloud-based hosting option is presented.
- B6.3 Notwithstanding B6, the type and quantity of Work to be performed under this Contract is subject to annual approval of monies therefore in a budget by Council. Proponents are advised that no monies have been approved to date, as the PPMS Project budget for 2017 is still subject to Council approval.
- B6.4 Notwithstanding B6, in the event that operational changes result in substantial changes to the requirements for Work, the City reserves the right to alter the type or quantity of work performed under this Contract, or to terminate the Contract, upon thirty (30) Calendar Days written notice by the Contract Administrator. In such an event, no claim may be made for damages on the ground of loss of anticipated profit on Work.

B7. GENERAL CONDITIONS

- B7.1 The General Conditions for Supply of Services (Revision 2007 04 12) are applicable to the Work of the Contract.
- B7.1.1 The General Conditions for Supply of Services are available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Division website at General Conditions for the Supply of Services (Revision 2007 04 12)

B8. PROJECT SCHEDULE

- B8.1 The City intends to complete the evaluation of the Qualification Submissions by May 2016.
- B8.2 It is anticipated that the City will proceed with the issuance of an RFP, subject to City Council budget approval for the Project, by Q2 2017.
- B8.3 Details on the RFP schedule will be provided to the short-listed RFP Proponents after completion of the RFQ stage. The City intends to complete the RFP stage by Q4 2017.
- B8.4 Estimated Preliminary Schedule

PPMS Phase	Approximate Date(s)	
1. RFQ Process	March – April 2016	
2. Evaluation/Shortlist of Proponents	April – May 2016	
3. RFP Process	Q2 2017	
4. Evaluation/Selection of Proponent	Q3 2017	
5. Award	Q4 2017	
6. PPMS Implementation	From Q4 2017	

B9. PROCUREMENT PROCESS

- B9.1 The first stage of the procurement process for the Project is this RFQ. The City intends to invite only short-listed Proponents to participate in the second stage of the procurement process, the RFP.
- B9.2 Following completion of the RFQ stage, short-listed Proponents will be invited to provide detailed proposals in response to an RFP that will be structured following best practices used in other Canadian jurisdictions. The RFP may include several submission stages related to technical, financial and, if needed, innovation components. The City will evaluate the detailed proposals received from the Proponents and select the preferred Proponent for the purposes of concluding the Contract.
- B9.3 Further details on the RFP process will be provided to the short-listed Proponents after both completion of the RFQ stage and City Council approval of the Project's budget.

B10. DISCLOSURE

- B10.1 Various Persons provided information or services with respect to this Work. In the City's opinion, this relationship or association does not create a conflict of interest because of this full disclosure. Where applicable, additional material available as a result of contact with these Persons is listed below.
- B10.2 The Persons are consulting engineering companies, who provided information to the City such as their experience managing projects for and with the City, during Phase 2 of the PPMS Project, including:
 - (a) Stantec Consulting Ltd, Winnipeg MB
 - (b) AECOM Canada Ltd, Winnipeg MB
 - (c) Dillon Consulting Limited., Winnipeg MB
 - (d) Morrison Hershfield Limited., Winnipeg MB
 - (e) Kontzamanis Graumann Smith MacMillan (KGS Group) Inc., Winnipeg MB.

B11. ENQUIRIES

- B11.1 All enquiries shall be directed to the Contract Administrator identified in B12.
- B11.2 Any Proponent who has questions as to the meaning or intent of any part of this document or who believes this document contains any error, inconsistency or omission should make an enquiry prior to the Submission Deadline requesting clarification, interpretation or explanation in writing to the Contract Administrator.
- B11.3 If the Proponent finds errors, discrepancies or omissions in the document, or is unsure of the meaning or intent of any provision therein, the Proponent shall promptly notify the Contract Administrator of the error, discrepancy or omission at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B11.4 If the Proponent is unsure of the meaning or intent of any provision therein, the Proponent should request clarification as to the meaning or intent prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B11.5 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, require a correction to or a clarification of the RFQ will be provided by the Contract Administrator to all Proponents by issuing an addendum.
- B11.6 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, do not require a correction to or a clarification of the RFQ will be provided by the Contract Administrator only to the Proponent who made the enquiry.

B11.7 The Proponent shall not be entitled to rely on any response or interpretation received pursuant to B10 unless that response or interpretation is provided by the Contract Administrator in writing.

B12. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

B12.1 The Contract Administrator is Paradigm Consulting Group, represented by:

Leon Toland (Dr)

PPMS (Phase 2) Project Manager

Telephone.No. 204-805-0483

E-mail Address: x-LToland@winnipeg.ca

B13. ADDENDA

- B13.1 The Contract Administrator may, at any time prior to the Submission Deadline, issue addenda correcting errors, discrepancies or omissions in the RFQ, or clarifying the meaning or intent of any provision therein.
- B13.2 The Contract Administrator will issue each addendum at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, or provide at least two (2) Business Days by extending the Submission Deadline.
 - (a) The Addenda will be available on the Bid Opportunities page at the Materials Management Division's website at <u>Bid Opportunities</u>
- B13.2.1 The Proponent is responsible for ensuring that he/she has received all addenda and is advised to check the Materials Management Division's website for addenda regularly and shortly before the Submission Deadline, as may be amended by addendum.
- B13.3 The Proponent should acknowledge receipt of each addendum on Form A: Request for Qualification Application.

B14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND GOOD FAITH

- B14.1 Proponents must not include among their team, any business entity or individual who is, or is associated with, in any way, any consultant retained by the City in relation to the Project, including but not limited to consultants providing engineering, architectural, legal, process, finance or financial capacity advice or any Person likely to create a conflict of interest or a perception of conflict of interest.
- B14.2 If a Proponent considers that a particular relationship or association does not create a conflict of interest and will not create a perception of conflict of interest, but is concerned that the City could arrive at a different conclusion, the Proponent should fully disclose the circumstances to the City at the earliest possible date, and request that the City provide an advance interpretation as to whether the relationship or association will be likely to create a conflict of interest or a perception of conflict of interest.
- B14.3 The Proponent declares that in submitting its response to this RFQ, it does so in good faith and will disclose to the best of its knowledge, whether there are any circumstances whereby any member of Council or any officer or employee of the City would gain any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, as a result of the Proponents participation in this Project.
- B14.4 Failure to comply with this provision may result in disqualification of your Submission from the RFQ process or, if the City becomes aware of your breach of this provision after the RFP has been issued, disqualification from the RFP process.

B15. CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVACY

- B15.1 Information provided to a Proponent by the City or acquired by a Proponent by way of further enquiries or through investigation is confidential. Such information shall not be used or disclosed in any way without the prior written authorization of the City. The Proponent shall not make any statement of fact or opinion regarding any aspect of the RFQ and any subsequent proposal to the media or any member of the public without the prior written authorization of the City.
- B15.2 The protection of personal information and privacy will be fundamental aspects of the Project. Proponents shall comply with all applicable privacy legislation, including but not limited to the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act (Canada) ("PIPEDA"). In addition, Proponents are advised that the City is subject to The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Manitoba) ("FIPPA") and that the Contractor will be expected to comply with the obligations imposed upon the City pursuant to FIPPA.
- B15.3 To the extent permitted, the City shall treat all Submissions as confidential. However, the Proponent is advised that any information contained in any Submission may be released if required by City policy or procedures, by FIPPA, by other authorities having jurisdiction, or by law.
- B15.4 All Qualification Submissions submitted to the City will be kept in confidence with the City for the sole purposes of evaluating and developing the best possible strategic option for the City. Qualification Submissions will become the property of the City. The City will have the right to make copies of all Submissions for its internal review process and to provide such copies to its staff and/or external advisors and representatives.
- B15.5 All information will become and remain the property of the City; none will be returned. If the application contains any proprietary or trade secret information, said information must be indicated as such.

B16. NON-DISCLOSURE

- B16.1 Proponents must not disclose any details pertaining to their RFQ and the selection process in whole or in part to anyone not specifically involved in their Submission, without the prior written approval of the City. Proponents shall not issue a news release or other public announcement pertaining to details of their Qualification Submission or the selection process without the prior written approval of the City.
- B16.2 Proponents are advised that an attempt on the part of any Proponent or any of its employees, agents, contractors or representatives to contact any members of City Council or their staff or any member of City Administration other than the Contract Administrator with respect to this RFQ solicitation, may lead to disqualification.

B17. NO COLLUSION

- B17.1 Upon making a Submission to this RFQ, each Proponent shall declare that they have not participated in any collusive scheme or combine.
- B17.2 Proponents must ensure that their participation in this RFQ is conducted without collusion or fraud on their part or any of their team. Proponents and their team members shall not engage in discussions or other communications with any other Proponents or their team members regarding the preparation or submission of their responses to this RFQ. Breach of this provision may result in disqualification from the RFQ process or, if the City becomes aware of your breach of this provision after the RFP has been issued, from the RFP process.

B18. NO LOBBYING

B18.1 Any form of political or other lobbying whatsoever in relation to the Project or with a view to influencing the outcome of this RFQ process is strictly prohibited. Failure to comply with this provision may result in disqualification from the RFQ process or, if the City becomes aware of your breach of this provision after the RFP has been issued, disqualification from the RFP process.

B19. ELIGIBILITY

B19.1 No Persons involved with the City, or acting as a consultant or sub-consultant to the City with respect to this Project, are eligible to submit a Qualification Submission for this RFQ or participate in any manner whatsoever as a participant or advisor to any Proponent participating in this RFQ or subsequent RFP.

SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS

B20. SUBMISSION DEADLINE

- B20.1 The Submission Deadline is 4:00 p.m. Winnipeg time, **April 7th, 2016**.
- B20.2 The Contract Administrator or the Manager of Materials may extend the Submission Deadline by issuing an addendum at any time prior to the time and date specified in B20.1.
- B20.3 Qualification Submissions will not be opened publicly.
- B20.4 Qualification Submissions determined by the Manager of Materials to have been received later than the Submission Deadline will not be accepted and will be returned unopened.
- B20.5 The Qualification Submission should be submitted enclosed and sealed in an envelope clearly marked with the RFQ number and the Proponent's name and address.
- B20.6 Qualification Submissions submitted by facsimile transmission (fax) or internet electronic mail (e-mail) will not be accepted.
- B20.7 Qualification Submissions shall be submitted to:

The City of Winnipeg Corporate Finance Department Materials Management Division 185 King Street, Main Floor Winnipeg MB R3B 1J1

B20.7.1 Samples or other components of the Qualification Submission which cannot reasonably be enclosed in the envelope may be packaged separately, but shall be clearly marked with the RFQ number, the Proponent's name and address, and an indication that the contents are part of the Proponent's Qualification Submission.

B21. QUALIFICATION SUBMISSION

- B21.1 The Qualification Submission should consist of the following components:
 - (a) Form A: Request for Qualification Application (Section A);
 - (b) Form N: Proponent Proposal Requirements (Section B)
 - (c) Public Sector Knowledge & Experience of Proponent (Section C), including
 - (i) Proponent_RFQ_Consultant_Form;
 - (d) Product Development Profile of Proponent (Section D);
 - (e) PPMS Implementation Approach of Proponent (Section E);

- (f) Value-Added or Innovative Services of Proponent (Section F).
- B21.2 All requirements of the RFQ should be fully completed or provided, and submitted by the Proponent no later than the Submission Deadline, with all required entries made clearly and completely to constitute a responsive RFQ.
- B21.3 Proponents are advised that inclusion of terms and conditions inconsistent with the RFQ document will be evaluated in accordance with B31.1(a).
- B21.4 All Submissions received in response to this RFQ will be kept in confidence with the sole purposes of evaluating and developing the best possible strategic option for the City.
- B21.5 Submissions and the information they contain will be the property of the City upon receipt. No Submissions will be returned.

Format

- B21.6 Proponents should submit one (1) unbound original (marked "original") and six (6) copies.
 - (a) Each requirement should be addressed in a separate section clearly marked with the corresponding letter;
 - (b) Further to B21.6(a), the Submission should contain no more than twenty (20) pages, exclusive of the required forms and Key Personnel resumes. Any graphics included should be contained within the specified amount of pages. Failure to adhere to the page limitation may render the Submission non-responsive. Anything including as an appendix will not be evaluated;
 - (c) Further to B21.6(a) and (b), the Submission must be submitted on 8.5" x11" paper, using a printing font of not less than 11 point Arial; margins of not less than 0.75", and linespacing of not less than single.
- B21.7 Further to B21.6, a total of two (2) of the twenty (20) total pages may be presented on 11" x 17" paper, with the Submission copies only.
- B21.8 The City reserves the right to make additional copies of all Submissions for its internal review process and to provide such copies to its staff and external advisors.

B22. FORM A: REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION APPLICATION

- B22.1 Further to B21.1(a), the Proponent shall complete Form A: Request for Qualifications Application, making all required entries.
- B22.2 Paragraph 2 of Form A: Request for Qualifications Application shall be completed in accordance with the following requirements:
 - (a) if the Proponent is a sole proprietor carrying on business in his/her own name, his/her name shall be inserted:
 - (b) if the Proponent is a partnership, the full name of the partnership shall be inserted:
 - (c) if the Proponent is a corporation, the full name of the corporation shall be inserted;
 - (d) if the Proponent is carrying on business under a name other than his/her own, the business name and the name of every partner or corporation who is the owner of such business name shall be inserted.
- B22.2.1 If the Submission is submitted jointly by two or more persons, each and all such persons shall identify themselves in accordance with B22.2.
- B22.3 In Paragraph 3 of Form A: Request for Qualifications Application, the Proponent shall identify a contact person who is authorized to represent the Proponent for purposes of this RFQ.

- B22.4 Paragraph 7 of Form A: Request for Qualification Application should be signed in accordance with the following requirements:
 - (a) if the Proponent is sole proprietor carrying of business in his/her own name, it shall be signed by the Proponent;
 - (b) if the Proponent is a partnership, it shall be signed by the partner or partners who have authority to sign for the partnership:
 - (c) if the Proponent is a corporation, it shall be signed by its duly authorized officer or officers and the corporate seal, if the corporation has one, should be affixed:
 - (d) if the Proponent is carrying on business under a name other than his/her own, it shall be signed by the registered owner of the business name or by the registered owner's authorized officials if the owner is a partnership or a corporation.
- B22.5 The name and official capacity of all individuals signing Form A: Request for Qualification Application should be printed below such signatures.
- B22.6 All signatures should be original.
- B22.7 If a Submission is submitted jointly by two or more persons, the word "Proponent" shall mean each and all such persons, and the undertakings, covenants and obligations of such joint Proponents in the Submission, shall be both jointly and several.

B23. FORM N: PROPONENT PROPOSAL-REQUIREMENTS

- B23.1 Further to B21.1(b), the Proponent shall complete Form N: Proponent Proposal-Requirements, making all required entries, including:
 - (a) Mandatory Requirements (Requirement References: R1 to R29);
 - (b) Non-Mandatory Requirements (Requirement References: R30 to R179).
- B23.2 The Proponent should submit information in sufficient detail within Form N: for the City to evaluate the Proponent's proposed PPMS software tool, in terms of
 - (a) Mandatory Requirements;
 - (b) Non-Mandatory Requirements.

B24. PUBLIC SECTOR KNOWLEDGE & EXPERIENCE OF PROPONENT

- B24.1 Further to B21.1(c), the Proponent should submit information in sufficient detail for the City to evaluate the qualifications of the Proponent by providing:
 - (a) the number of contracts similar in size, scope and complexity within the Public Sector;
 - (b) the details of the scope and value of each contract;
 - (c) the names of recent Public Sector clients (within the last three (3) years);
 - (d) three (3) references for recent Public Sector projects similar in size and scope. Each reference should consist of an organization name, contact name, email address, phone number and a brief description of the project including:
 - (i) project scope;
 - (ii) role of the Proponent;
 - (iii) project's original contracted cost and final cost, and
 - (iv) project schedule (anticipated project schedule and actual project delivery schedule).
 - (e) details of the Proponent's proposed Key Personnel for the PPMS Project in the Proponent_RFQ_Consultant_Form, according to B21.1(c)(i). Resumes for the proposed Key Personnel should also be submitted at this time. The resumes must be no longer than two (2) pages in length, in the format according to B21.6.

- B24.2 The Proposal should include general firm profile information, including years in business, average volume of Public Sector work, number of employees and other pertinent information for the Proponent.
- B24.3 Key Personnel that the Proponent identifies in B24.1(e) will be subject to the City's Substitutions rules, according to B28.

B25. PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT PROFILE OF PROPONENT

- B25.1 Further to B21.1(d), the Proponent should submit information in sufficient detail for the City to evaluate the Proponent's current software product development profile by providing:
 - (a) details of the Proponent's current Software Product Roadmap, and
 - (b) the names of clients (from all business sectors) who use current versions of the Proponent's proposed PPMS software tool.

B26. PPMS IMPLEMENTATION APPROACH OF PROPONENT

- B26.1 Further to B21.1(e), the Proponent should submit information in sufficient detail for the City, after consulting Attachments 1 to 24, to evaluate the Proponent's proposed PPMS implementation approach for the City, by providing:
 - (a) details of the Proponent's proposed project management approach for the PPMS Project, including:
 - (i) proposed Project team organization chart;
 - (ii) the Project management methodology that would be adopted, which should align with City's Project Delivery Framework (see Attachment 10);
 - (iii) proposed Project delivery timescale and scope;
 - (iv) proposed Project phasing or sequencing:
 - (v) proposed resource effort (hours) per Project phase;
 - (vi) proposed Quality Management model for the Project, and
 - (vii) anticipated Project support effort (total hours) required by City staff.
 - (b) details of the Proponent's proposed approach to Organizational Change Management (OCM) aspects of PPMS, including:
 - (i) proposed training strategy for City users and IT support staff;
 - (ii) proposed PPMS Project communication activities, and
 - (iii) proposed change and Resistance Management methods to increase PPMS User Adoption.
 - (c) a description of the collaborative process/method with City staff that would be used by the Key Personnel outlined in B24.1(e), during the proposed phases of the PPMS Project.

B27. VALUE-ADDED OR INNOVATIVE SERVICES OF PROPONENT

- B27.1 Further to B21.1(f), the Proponent should submit information in sufficient detail for the City to evaluate the Proponent's ability to offer additional Value-Added or Innovative Services for the City by providing:
 - (a) for Value-Added Services: a description of any Proponent services or products that are offered currently to other clients of the Proponent, if available, that may provide the City with additional Business Benefits;
 - (b) for Innovative Services: a description of any Proponent services or products that are offered currently to other clients of the Proponent, if available, that may provide the City with additional Business Capabilities, and

(c) brief details of other Proponent software products that integrate with the Proponent's proposed PPMS software tool, if available.

B28. SUBSTITUTIONS

B28.1 If, following your Submission, you become aware that any Persons identified to participate in this Project will be unable or is likely to be unable to participate on this Project, you must immediately advise the Contract Administrator and indicate your proposed substitute Person. Failure to do so may result in disqualification of your Submission from the RFQ process or, if the City becomes aware of your breach of this provision after the RFP has been issued, from the RFP process.

B29. NON-CONFORMING SUBMISSIONS

- B29.1 Notwithstanding B21.1, with the exception of B20.4, if a Proponent's Submission is not strictly in accordance with any provision of this RFQ, the City may, at its option:
 - (a) waive the non-conformance if, in the City's opinion, the non-conformance is immaterial; or
 - (b) reject the Submission as non-responsive if, in the City's opinion, the non-conformance is material.
- B29.1.1 If the non-conformance is an omission, the City may, at its discretion, give the Proponent up to five (5) Business Days to supply the omitted material.
- B29.2 If the requested information is not submitted by the time specified in B29.1.1, the Submission will be determined to be non-responsive.

B30. PROPONENT'S COSTS AND EXPENSES

B30.1 Proponents are solely responsible for their own costs and expenses in preparing and submitting a Qualification Submission and participating in the RFQ, including the provision of any additional information, software demonstrations to the PPMS RFQ evaluation team, if short-listed, or attendance at meetings.

EVALUATION

B31. EVALUATION CRITERIA

B31.1 Proponents will have their Submissions evaluated in accordance with the criteria and weight factors indicated below:

	EVALUATION CATEGORY	WEIGHTING (%)
(a)	Form N (Proponent Proposal-Requirements) Conformance to Mandatory Requirements or acceptable deviation therefrom.	Pass/Fail
(b)	Form N (Proponent Proposal-Requirements) Conformance to Non-Mandatory Requirements or acceptable deviation therefrom	50
(c)	Public Sector Knowledge & Experience (Section C)	10

(d)	Product Development Profile (Section D)	5
(e)	PPMS Implementation Approach (Section E)	30
(f)	Value-Added or Innovative Services (Section F)	5
Total So	core	100

- B31.2 Further to B31.1(a) and B29, the City may reject a Submission as being non-responsive if the Submission is incomplete, obscure or conditional, or contains additions, deletions, alterations or other irregularities. The City may reject all or any part of any Submission, or waive technical requirements or minor informalities or irregularities if the interests of the City so require.
- B31.3 Further to B31.1(b) the Proponent's response to Form N shall be evaluated considering the degree to which the Proponent can satisfy the non-mandatory requirements for the solution requested and submitted in response to B23.
- B31.4 Further to B31.1(c), Public Sector Knowledge & Experience will be evaluated considering the experience of the Proponent on projects of similar size and complexity in the Public Sector as well as other information requested and submitted in response to B24.
- B31.5 Further to B31.1(d) Product Development Profile will be evaluated considering the Proponent's response to the information requested and submitted in response to B25.
- B31.6 Further to B31.1(e), PPMS Implementation Approach will be evaluated considering the Proponent's understanding of the City's Project, proposed project management approach as well as other information requested and submitted in response to B26.
- B31.7 Further to B31.1(f) Value Added or Innovative Services will be evaluated considering the Proponent's understanding of the City's Project, proposed project management approach as well as other information requested and submitted in response to B27.
- B31.8 Reference checks to confirm information provided may not be restricted to only those submitted by the Proponent, and may include organizations representing Persons, known to have done business with the Proponent.
- B31.9 The City has full power to conduct an independent verification of information in any Submission received and generally pertaining to the qualifications and experience of the Proponent and any proposed members of its team.
- B31.10 The City may, in its sole discretion, interview any or all Proponents during the evaluation process, to provide clarification or additional information in relation to its Submission.
- B31.11 Further to B31.3 to B31.7 a Submission may be determined to be not qualified if the Submission does not obtain a minimum of 50% of the points for each category.

B32. NO CONTRACT

- B32.1 By submitting a Qualification Submission and participating in the process as outlined in this document, Proponents expressly agree that no contract of any kind is formed under, or arises from this RFQ, and that no legal obligations will arise.
- B32.2 Although it is the intention of the City to establish a short-list of Proponents to participate in the RFP stage of the procurement process, the City reserves the right and the full power to give

notice in writing of any change to its Contract Administrator, amend any dates, schedules, limits and Scope of Work and any contract awarded, or to reject any and all Submissions, to launch a new or amended procurement process, or to decide that it will not issue the RFP, without incurring any liability in respect of costs or damages incurred by any Proponent or any member of a private sector team.

- B32.3 Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the City reserves the right and the full power to amend or cancel this RFQ, the procurement process or the Project at any time.
- B32.4 If the City proceeds to request a more detailed proposal, only to Proponents determined to be qualified under the RFQ process, the City will have no obligation to award a Contract where:
 - (a) only one Submission is received; or
 - (b) in the judgment of the City, the interests of the City would best be served by not entering into a Contract.
- B32.5 The City reserves the right to disqualify any Proponent whose Submission, in the opinion of the City, contains false or misleading information.
- B32.6 Following the conclusion of the RFQ process, Proponents will be provided with information related to the evaluation of their Submission upon written request to the Contract Administrator.